
REVISED 
SPECIAL 

OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA 

Called by:  Keith McDonald, Chairman DATE: THURSDAY, AUGUST 31, 2023     
Members:  Paul Arena, John Butitta, 
Valerie Hanserd, Joe Hoffman,  

TIME: 5:30 PM 

Jaime Salgado, Michael Thompson LOCATION:   ROOM 510 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BLDG 
404 ELM STREET 
ROCKFORD, IL 61101 

AGENDA: 

A. Call to Order

B. Roll Call

C. Approval of Minutes – August 3, 2023

D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Operations and
Administrative Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments
to three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be
tolerated.  We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at
the meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are pending before the ZBA,
the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or threatened
litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An individual may speak a maximum of
three times per calendar year on the same topic.  This prohibition shall include the repetition
of the same topic in a statement on what is purported to be a different topic.  After
acknowledgement by the chair, please stand and state your name.  Thank you.

E. Resolution Awarding Elevator Modernization for Courthouse and Old Courthouse Using
CIP 2023 PSST Funds
Cost: $1,392,000

F. Resolution Establishing the Date, Time and Location of Each Meeting of the Winnebago
County Board

G. Resolution Awarding JDC Parking Lot Replacement Using CIP 2021 Funds
Cost: $86,800

H. Resolution Awarding Energy Wheels Replacement with ARP Funds
Cost: $172,876

I. Resolution Awarding Multi-Year Agreement for Permitting and Code Enforcement
Software to Brightly Software, Inc. Using CIP 2024 Funds
Cost: $60,811.02 (Implementation) Plus Annual Maintenance of $34,337.82

J. Ordinance Amending Section 2-49 (Duties of The County Board Chairman) of The
Winnebago County Code of Ordinances



 

 
K. Discuss Public Safety Building - Family Court Center – ARP Phase 2 Project 

 
L. Future Agenda Items 

 
M. Adjournment 



 

 

 Page 1  
  

Winnebago County Board 
Operations and Administrative Committee Meeting 

County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street, Room 303 

Rockford, IL 61101 
 

Thursday, August 3, 2023 
5:30 PM 

 
 
Present: Others Present: 
Keith McDonald, Chairperson 
Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chairperson 
Paul Arena 
John Butitta 
Joe Hoffman 
Michael Thompson 
 
Absent: 
Jaime Salgado 

Patrick Thompson, County Administrator 
Steve Schultz, Chief Financial Officer 
Ann Johns, Staff Liaison 
Charlotte LeClercq, Asst. Deputy State’s Attorney Office 
Tommy Meeks, Alternative Programs Community Liaison 
Chris Petrus, IT Department 
 

AGENDA:        
A. Call to Order  
B. Roll Call 
C. Approval of Minutes – July 6, 2023 
D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Operations and 

Administrative Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your 
comments to three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort 
will not be tolerated.  We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis 
with sign up at the meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are 
pending before the ZBA, the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel 
matters or pending or threatened litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An 
individual may speak a maximum of three times per calendar year on the same topic.  
This prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on what 
is purported to be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the chair, please stand 
and state your name.  Thank you.  

E. Resolution to Approve Boiler Replacements Using CIP PSST 2023 Funds  
F. Resolution to Approve Domestic Hot Water Source Replacements Using CIP PSST 

2023 Funds 
G. Resolution Establishing the County Holiday Schedule For 2024 
H. Future Agenda Items 
I. Adjournment 

 
Chairperson McDonald called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 
 
Roll Call 
Chairperson Keith McDonald yes, Valerie Hanserd yes, Paul Arena yes, John Butitta yes, 
Joe Hoffman yes, Michael Thompson yes. 
 
Approval of Minutes – July 6, 2023 
Chairperson McDonald called for a motion to approve the July 6, 2023 minutes. 



 

 

 Page 2  
  

Motion: Committee members.  Second: Committee members. 
Chairperson McDonald called for any comments, corrections or discussion. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment 
Chairperson McDonald omitted reading the Public Comment Section of the Agenda due to no 
one present to speak.  
 
Resolution to Approve Boiler Replacements Using CIP PSST 2023 Funds 
Chairperson McDonald reported the Resolution to Approve Boiler Replacements Using CIP 
PSST 2023 Funds was not ready for committee discussion and vote. 
 
Resolution to Approve Domestic Hot Water Source Replacements Using CIP PSST 2023 
Funds 
Chairperson McDonald reported the Resolution to Approve Domestic Hot Water Source 
Replacements Using CIP PSST 2023 Funds was not ready for committee discussion and vote. 
 
Resolution Establishing the County Holiday Schedule For 2024 
Chairperson McDonald called for a motion to approve the Resolution Establishing the County 
Holiday Schedule For 2024. 
Motion: Chairperson McDonald.  Second: Mr. Thompson. 

• Discussion followed on ensuring Juneteenth was included in the schedule. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Future Agenda Items  
None reported. 

 
Motion to Adjourn   
Chairperson McDonald called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
Motion: Mr. Thompson.  Second: Mr. Hoffman. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Nancy Bleile 
Administrative Assistant 



 
 
 

 
Resolution Executive Summary 

For ARPA or CIP Projects 
    
 
Prepared By:  Purchasing Department for Facilities Department   
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee   
Committee Date: August 31, 2023  
Board Date:  September 7, 2023     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Elevator Modernization for Courthouse 

and Old Courthouse Using CIP 2023 PSST Funds  
 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES                Amount Budgeted?  $1,400,000             
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   CIP 2023 PSST Funds                                       
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $1,400,000                                 
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER         By: $8,000                                             
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  N/A 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A             
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46430-C2319    Descriptor: CIP 2023 PSST- Machinery and Equip 
Budget Impact? $ 1,392,000 

 

Background Information: The elevators in the Courthouse and Old Courthouse are in need of 
modernization; three (3) elevators at the Courthouse and two (2) elevators at the Old 
Courthouse.  These elevators were last modernized in 2003 and 2004.  The controllers in these 
elevators are obsolete and no longer supported.  The modernization will not only replace the 
obsolete components but also bring the elevators up to current code requirements, providing 
safety to users, and making them ADA compliant. 
 
The elevator modernization project, including five (5) cab upgrades, was put out for Bid, in 
which the Purchasing department received two (2) bids with the lowest Bid presented at 
$1,342,000 from Kone, Inc.; see Resolution Exhibit A. An additional contingency of $50,000 is 
recommended for unforeseen electrical work or other parts/service, such as a stairwell code 
compliance in question. Any contingency funds will only be allowed, if Shawn Franks approves, 
in advance and the PO is revised.  

 
Recommended By:  Shawn Franks – Facilities Engineer     
 
Follow-Up Steps:  The Purchasing Department will issue a County Purchase Order to Kone, Inc. 
in the amount of $1,342,000. 



County Board Meeting: September 7, 2023 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING ELEVATOR MODERNIZATION FOR COURTHOUSE AND OLD COURTHOUSE 
USING CIP 2023 PSST FUNDS 

 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Elevator cars 1, 2 & 3 at the Courthouse and cars 6 & 7 at the Old 
Courthouse are in need of modernization; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department received Bids from local vendors; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab (Resolution Exhibit A) for the 
aforementioned service and recommends awarding this project to:  

 

KONE, INC. 
5801 SOUTH PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE 

CUDAHY, WISCONSIN 53110 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a Purchase Order, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to KONE, INC., 5801 SOUTH PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE, 
CUDAHY, WISCONSIN 53110. 

. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, Director of Facilities, County Board Office and County Auditor.                  

 



              Respectfully Submitted, 
          OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 





 
 
 

                                                                                                     County Board: 9/7/2023    
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 

Sponsored by: Keith McDonald, Chairman 
Submitted by: Operations & Administrative Committee 

 
2023 CR 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE DATE, TIME AND LOCATION OF EACH MEETING OF 
THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD 

 
WHEREAS, under provisions of 5ILCS 120/2.02, the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois is required to provide public notice of the date, time, and location of its regularly 
scheduled meetings; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago is required to hold regular 

meetings during the months of June and September and may hold additional regular meetings at 
such times as may be determined. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Board shall conduct its regular meetings on the 2nd and 4th Thursdays of each month 
of Fiscal Year 2024 at 6:00 pm., except as indicated hereunder (*): 

 

 

October 12, 2023 
October 26, 2023 

 
November 9, 2023  
November 30, 2023 (5th Thursday) *  

 
December 14, 2023 
December 28, 2023  

 
January 11, 2024 
January 25, 2024 

 
February 8, 2024 
February 22, 2024 

 
March 14, 2024 
March 28, 2024   

            
 

   April 11, 2024 
April 25, 2024 

 
May 9, 2024 
May 23, 2024 

 
June 13,2024 
June 27, 2024 

 
July 11, 2024 
July 25, 2024 

 
August 8, 2024 
August 22, 2024 

 
September 5, 2024 (1st Thursday) * 
September 26, 2024   

 
 
 
 

 
             



 
 
 

              Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



 
 
 

 
Resolution Executive Summary 

For ARPA or CIP Projects 
    
 
Prepared By:  Purchasing Department for Facilities Department   
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee   
Committee Date: August 31, 2023  
Board Date:  September 7, 2023     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding JDC Parking Lot Replacement Using CIP 2021 Funds  

 
Budget Information 

Budgeted? YES                Amount Budgeted?  $200,000             
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   N/A                                       
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $200,000                                 
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER         By: $113,200                                             
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  N/A 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A             
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46310-C2113    Descriptor: CIP 2021 – Land Improvements 
Budget Impact? $ 86,800 

 

Background Information: The parking lot at the Winnebago County Juvenile Detention Center 
is in need of a complete replacement.  The Purchasing Department went out for Bid for full 
depth asphalt removal and replacement, striping, concrete removal, concrete curb, gutter, and 
sidewalk installation. The project also includes replacing the service drive used for deliveries of 
food and other necessary supplies. Handicap stalls will be adjusted and striped to meet current 
ADA Standards.  This project will also address the northeast corner of the parking lot that is 
sinking, leaving a manhole exposed and above the parking lot grade, presenting a hazard to 
vehicles and people. 
 
The Purchasing Department sent the Invitation for Bid to 16 people, representing 16 
companies, including Project FirstRate, posted the IFB in the Rockford Register Star and on the 
County website. The invitation resulted in five (5) companies represented at the Mandatory 
Pre-Bid Meeting and a total of three (3) Bids with the lowest Bid presented at $86,800 by 
Norwest Construction, Inc., see Resolution Exhibit A.   
 
Recommended By:  Shawn Franks, Director of Facilities     
 
Follow-Up Steps:  The Purchasing Department will issue a County Purchase order to Norwest 
Construction, Inc.   



County Board Meeting: September 7, 2023 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING JDC PARKING LOT REPLACEMENT 
USING CIP 2021 FUNDS 

 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Winnebago County Juvenile Detention Center needs to replace the 
facilities parking lot, sidewalk and service drive; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department received Bids from local vendors; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab for the aforementioned project and 
recommends awarding this project to:  

 

NORWEST CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
82 PRAIRIE HILL ROAD 

SOUTH BELOIT, ILLINOIS 61080 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a Purchase Order, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to Norwest Construction, Inc., 82 Prairie Hill Road, South 
Beloit, Illinois 61080. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 

immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, Director of Facilities, County Board Office and County Auditor.                  

 
 



              Respectfully Submitted, 
          OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Winnebago County Purchasing Department
404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

VENDOR NAME Rock Road Companies, Inc. Norwest Construction, Inc. Stenstrom

TOTAL PRICE FOR COMPLETE PROJECT 
2276 Sq. Yd. Total  

Includes 2036 Blacktop Sq. Yd., 
50 Sq. Yd. Curb 

and 190 Sq. Yd. Sidewalk

$87,451.32 - $38.42 Sq. Yd. $86,800 - $38.14 Sq. Yd. $89,327 - $39.25 Sq. Yd.

NUMBER OF DAYS TO COMPLETE WORK 10 Working Days 60 Working Days 20 Working Days

BID TAB
JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER PARKING LOT REPLACEMENT - 23B-2289 

BID OPENING AUGUST 7, 2023 - 3:00 P.M.

Resolution Exhibit A



 
 
 

 
Resolution Executive Summary 

For ARPA or CIP Projects 
   
 
Prepared By:  Purchasing Department for Facilities Department   
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee   
Committee Date: August 31, 2023  
Board Date:  September 7, 2023     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Energy Wheels Replacement with ARP Funds   

 
Budget Information 

Budgeted? YES                Amount Budgeted?  $100,000             
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   N/A                                       
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $100,000                                 
Over or Under approved amount? Over         By: $72,876                                             
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  Original request/plan was to replace one Energy Recovery 
Wheel per year over four years at approximately $45,000 each, however, snow intrusion has 
rendered two (2) inoperable and two (2) nearly inoperable. Additionally it is more cost effective 
to replace all four at one time, as well as, lessen the burden on the Jail by reducing the security 
burden to one construction project. 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  YES             
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 61300-46320-RP0097    Descriptor: ARP – Building Improvement 
Budget Impact? $ 172,876 

 

Background Information: Energy Recovery Wheels pre-heat or pre-cool the incoming 
ventilation air, depending on the season, which improves indoor air quality, controls humidity, 
and reduces HVAC load, resulting in reduced energy consumption.  The eight (8) existing ERW, 
two (2) per floor, were installed during construction at the Criminal Justice Center in 2007, and 
had an estimated lifespan of 15-20 years, however, due to snow intrusion, two (2) wheels on 
the 4th Floor are not operational at all, and two on the 3rd floor are barely operational. The 
snow intrusion issue has been rectified and should not happen again.   
  
The Purchasing Department went out for Bid #23B-2300 Energy Recovery Wheels Replacement 
and received two (2) bids from five (5) companies represented at the Mandatory Pre-Bid 
Meeting, with the lowest bid at $172,876 from Miller Engineering Company. The Invitation for 
Bid was posted in the Register Star, on the County website, and emailed to 44 people, 
representing 35 suppliers, Project First Rate, Local 23 Plumbers and Pipefitters, and the 
Northern Illinois Building Contractors Association.   
  
Recommended By:  Shawn Franks, Facilities Director      
 

Follow-Up Steps:  The Purchasing Department will issue a County Purchase Order to Miller 
Engineering, in the amount of $172,876. 



County Board Meeting: September 7, 2023 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING ENERGY RECOVERY WHEELS REPLACEMENT  
WITH ARP FUNDS 

 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, it is time to replace the Energy Recovery Wheels at the Winnebago County 
Criminal Justice Center; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department received Bids from local HVAC contractors, 
the lowest Bid received at $172,876, from Miller Engineering Company; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab (see Resolution Exhibit A) and 
recommends awarding this purchase to:  

 

MILLER ENGINEERING COMPANY 
1616 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61102 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the County Administrator is authorized to issue a Purchase Order, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to Miller Engineering Company, 1616 South Main 
Street, Rockford, Illinois 61102. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Purchasing Department, 
Finance Director, Facilities Director, County Board Office and County Auditor.                  

               



Respectfully Submitted, 
          OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR NAME
MILLER ENGINEERING 

COMPANY

CERONI PIPING 

COMPANY

TOTAL PRICE FOR FOUR (4) ENERGY 

RECOVERY WHEELS
$172,876.00 $176,800.00

LEAD TIME FOR PARTS/MATERIALS 5-6 WEEKS 15 DAYS

NUMBER OF DAYS TO COMPLETE WORK 15 DAYS 15 DAYS

3 Year Service Contract 

Add $7,700 to Base Bid

3 Year Service Contract 

Add $7,000 to Base Bid

5 Year Service Contract 

Add $11,550 to Base Bid

5 Year Service Contract 

Add $10,500 to Base Bid

BID OPENING AUGUST 18, 2023 - 10:00 A.M.

BID TAB
23B-2300 ENERGY RECOVERY WHEELS REPLACEMENT AT CJC

WARRANTY DETAILS

Winnebago County Purchasing Department

404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Thursday, August 31, 2023 
   Committee: Operations & Administrative 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush  & Carlos Molina 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov      

 
Document Title:  Resolution Awarding Multi-Year Agreement for Permitting And Code 

Enforcement Software To Brightly Software, Inc. 
 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, September 7, 2023 
 
Budget Information: 
 
Budgeted?  YES, for FY-2024                Amount Budgeted?  $71,000 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   N/A                                       
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?    
$80,000 CIP (Implementation Cost) for Regional Planning & Economic Development 
Department (RPED) for FY-2024         
Over or Under approved amount?  
UNDER (RPED FY-2024, not approved yet, included in budget)          
By: $                                             
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200 / 43910 
Descriptor: CIP GF 24 – Other Professional Services 
Budget Impact?  $0 

 

 
Background Information:  
Software for Permitting & Code Enforcement 
 
Regional Planning & Economic Development Department (RPED) has been using Property 
Index Neighborhood Safety (PINS) Software for building & zoning permits since 2015 from 
Municipal Systems Inc. (MSI). MSI, also produced Administrative Building Codes (ABC) 
Software for code enforcement that the County has been using since 2015, which is used by 
Animal Services, Health Department, Zoning Division, Building Division, and Highway 
Department. However, in 2019 MSI sold to DACRA and are now no longer looking to support 
either software (PINS uses Microsoft Silverlight) past December 31, 2023. The County Highway 
Department will also be utilizing the permitting software for access permits, utility permits and 
any other work in the right-of-way that requires a permit. This will improve 
collaboration/communication for developments. 
 
> Received 5 quotes from different permitting software companies. 
 
Brightly, SmartGov (permitting and code enforcement) can support these areas that are needed to 
maintain operations for Building and Zoning as well as Administrative Code Hearing.  
 

http://www.wincoil.gov/
mailto:permits@rped.wincoil.gov


 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Thursday, August 31, 2023 
   Committee: Operations & Administrative 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush  & Carlos Molina 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov      

Additionally, another advantage is that the County Highway Department permits a large number 
of oversize/overweight trucks in Winnebago County (CAPS), which will now be switching over 
from a customized program that County Department of Information Technology maintains to 
SmartGov. While the current program works, it is time consuming to adapt and operates off of 
Microsoft Access, which is not as commonly used as it once was. Efficiencies are expected by 
better communication through the software among departments along with all its capabilities it 
offers. The below table illustrates the proposed budget amount for fiscal year 2024 to cover the 
costs and what the actuals came in at. After the first year the subscription cost will increase by 
3% each year for the next 4 years thereafter. The agreement is proposed for the 5 years which 
lowers the annual percentage increase. After the first year, use will be assessed to determine 
what is an appropriate cost sharing formula moving forward.  
 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department (RPED) 
 FY-2024  

ITEM COST  FUND 
Subscription 
(annually) 

$71,000 BUDGETED RPED Budget ($34,337.82) Actual Cost 
 $36,662.18   
    

Implementation 
(1 time start-up) 

$80,000 BUDGETED CIP ($60,811.02) Actual Cost 
 $19,188.98   

 
See attached Quote Tab (Exhibit A) for further details and breakdown of pricing.  
 
Recommendation: Regional Planning & Economic Development, Chris Dornbush; Highway 

Department, Carlos Molina supports the recommendation as proposed with 
the terms stated by the State’s Attorney Office. Administration, Finance, 
Information Technology, and Purchasing have all been included with this 
process. 

  
Follow-Up Steps:  Route agreement for signatures. 
 
Contract/Agreement: 
Yes, 5 years. 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
 
Follow-Up: 
Staff can provide updates to the Committee or entire Board as requested. 

http://www.wincoil.gov/
mailto:permits@rped.wincoil.gov


Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald County Board Meeting: September 7, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

2023 CR _______ 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A MULTI-YEAR AGREEMENT FOR PERMITTING AND CODE 
ENFORCEMENT SOFTWARE TO BRIGHTLY SOFTWARE, INC. 

WHEREAS, Brightly Software, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “Brightly”) is a software 
company that has existed since 1999 and offers software solutions to numerous industries; 
education, government, healthcare, manufacturing, senior living, and clubs & associations; and, 

WHEREAS, Brightly has a product, “SmartGov” that is, “mobile-friendly, cloud-
based software, helps you drive revenue growth and easily manage permitting, licensing, code 
enforcement”; and, 

WHEREAS, Winnebago County is in need of a replacement for permitting and code 
enforcement software due to the current software  not being supported after December 31, 
2023; and 

WHEREAS, the functionality of the “SmartGov” software product should improve 
efficiency of permitting, tractability, record keeping, communication among departments as 
well as the public; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 2-357(g) of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances 
(“County Code”) allows the County of Winnebago, Illinois (“the County”) to purchase goods 
and services without undergoing a competitive bid process if the County is using pricing 
obtained from another public agency through a competitive process: and  

WHEREAS, the Sourcewell Cooperative Pricing System, Contract #090320 SDI, 
provides a 21% discount from list price on software from Brightly Software, Inc. (formerly 
known as Dude Solutions); and  

WHEREAS, Winnebago County also received 5 quotes for permitting software; and 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Quote Tab (attached to Resolution, Exhibit A) for 
the aforementioned purchase and recommends awarding to:  
 
 

Brightly Software, Inc. 
11000 Regency Parkway, Suite 300 

Cary, NC 27518 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Joseph Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is 
authorized and directed to, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to enter into a Statement 
of Work (“SOW”), Master Subscription Agreement and Professional Services Addendum 
with Brightly Software, Inc., attached hereto as Exhibit B.  
 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the attached SOW, Master Subscription 
Agreement and Professional Services Addendum, by and between the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois and Brightly Software, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as Exhibit B) shall be in substantially 
the same form as attached. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the Winnebago County Board, of 

the County of Winnebago, Illinois is authorized to execute future renewals of the SOW, Master 
Subscription Agreement and Professional Services Addendum with Brightly Software, Inc., 
as long as the County of Winnebago, Illinois, continues utilizing said software and adequate 
budget is incorporated in respective fiscal year budget requests.      
 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and 
effective immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of 
Regional Planning & Economic Development, County Highway Engineer,  Director of 
Purchasing, Director of Finance, County Administrator and County Auditor. 

                            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
          OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

   

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR  KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR  VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Quote Tab for:
Software Services

Permiting
Code Enforcement

EXHIBIT A

Printed: 8/22/20231:54 PM

# of Vendors Company
 Annual 

Subscription 
Cost 

Flat
 Min-Max 
Average 

Min. Max
TOTAL Estimated 

Cost

1 Tyler - Munis 84,153$          262,000$      346,153$              

2
Brightly 
(SmartGov)

34,337.82$    60,811.02$  95,148.84$          

3
Accela (Axim 
Geospatial)

70,000$          200,000$      175,000$          225,000$               270,000$              

4 OpenGov 76,544$          78,045$        154,589$              
5 CityWorks 45,000$          240,000$      75,000$            405,000$               285,000$              

FY-2024 FY-2025 FY-2026 FY-2027 FY-2028

Company Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Implementation (1 
time start-up cost)

TOTAL Estimated 
COST (5 Years & 

start-up)

Tyler - Munis 4% 84,153.00$   84,153.00$  84,153.00$  84,153.00$      84,153.00$           420,765.00$        262,000.00$           682,765.00$         
Brightly 
(SmartGov)

3% 34,337.82$    35,367.96$  36,429.00$  37,521.87$      38,648.52$           182,305.17$        60,811.02$             243,116.19$         

Accela (Axim 
Geospatial)

4% 70,000.00$   70,000.00$  70,000.00$  70,000.00$      70,000.00$           350,000.00$        200,000.00$           550,000.00$         

OpenGov 5% 76,544.00$    76,544.00$  76,544.00$  76,544.00$      76,544.00$          382,720.00$        78,045.00$             460,765.00$         
CityWorks 4% 45,000.00$   45,000.00$  45,000.00$  45,000.00$      45,000.00$           225,000.00$        240,000.00$           465,000.00$         

estimated % increase
Not inclusive of 1-time 
implementation cost

Increase (year 
over year)

5 Year Annual 
Subcription Total

Cost Over 5 Year Span (Estimated by information provided)

Permitting & Code Hearing Software
 Implementation (1 time start-up costs) 





































































1 
 

County Board Meeting 
September 7, 2023 

 
ORDINANCE 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2023 CO ____ 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
SPONSORED BY:  PAUL ARENA 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2-49 (DUTIES OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

CHAIRMAN) OF THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES  
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 
amend the ordinance related to the duties of the County Board Chairman to clarify the 
direct report of county employees who perform duties that fall under the purview of the 
County Board Chairman; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee is recommending a 
provision that will specify that any county employee performing duties that fall under the 
purview of the County Board Chairman shall report directly to him. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Section 2-49 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances are 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
Sec. 2-49. - Duties. 
The county board chairman shall oversee development of long-range planning 

goals and objectives for the county. The county board chairman shall ensure conformance 
to the duties and responsibilities set forth in the "Counties Code" (55 ILCS 5/1-1001 et 
seq., 1992, as amended), he shall be responsible for the following: 

 
(a) Administrative responsibilities. 

(1) Appoint, with the advice and consent of the county board, those 
positions as required by the laws of the state. 

(2) Represent the county on all economic development opportunities. 
Monitor and report to the economic development committee chairman and the 
county board caucus leaders all economic development activities and proposed 
agreements or IGA's (Inter-Governmental Agreements) including any requested 
incentives at the time they are requested within seven business days of being first 
contacted by any outside entity or municipality wishing to do business with the 
county. 



2 
 

(3) Shall represent the county at all organizations of which the county is a 
member; or with the assistance of the county administrator, or a designee assigned 
with the advice and consent of the county board. 

(4) Serve as the primary liaison between county elected officials and county 
board. 

(5) Monitor the development of annual host fee allocations to be approved 
by the county board. 

(6) Develop and promote the county's legislative agenda with the approval 
of the county board. 

(7) Assist in developing and monitoring the county's strategic plan with the 
advice and consent of the county board. 

(8) Lead communication of County initiatives and accomplishments as 
approved by the county board. 

(9) Attend staff meetings convened for the purpose to discuss issues that 
may require legislative action by the county board and report a summary of the 
discussion to the appropriate committee chair.  

(10) Assist the committee chairs in establishing committee agendas. 
(11) Establish the agenda for county board meetings, except each agenda 

shall include a report from all standing committees and the items within the 
committee reports shall be established by the committee chairs. 

 
(b) Reporting and communications. 

(1) Report monthly to the county board on the affairs of the county. 
(2) When advisable, in order to promote county services and operations 

which are in the public interest, recommend to the county board the adoption of 
ordinances and resolutions. 

(3) Any county employee, who performs duties that fall under the purview 
of the county board chairman and as outlined in section (a) above, shall report 
directly to the county board chairman, unless otherwise directed. This shall include 
but not be limited to the County’s Communications Director and the Director of 
Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon signing. 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide 

a certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Board Chairman, County 
Administrator and the Chairs of the Republican and Democratic caucuses.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   



3 
 

      Respectfully submitted, 
 

                                            OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 
AGREE       DISAGREE 
 
 
________________________________   __________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman         Keith McDonald, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________          _________________________________ 
John Butitta             John Butitta 
 
_________________________________          _________________________________ 
Michael Thompson            Michael Thompson 
 
_________________________________           ________________________________ 
Paul Arena               Paul Arena  
 
_________________________________      ________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                     Joe Hoffman 
 
_________________________________      _________________________________ 
Valerie Hanserd         Valerie Hanserd 
 
__________________________________        __________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                     Jaime Salgado 
   
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, this ______ day of ___________________, 2023.  
  
  
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph V. Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 


	Revised Special Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Resolution Awarding Elevator Modernization for Courthouse and Old Courthouse Using CIP 2023 PSST Funds
	Resolution Establishing the Date, Time and Location of Each Meeting of The Winnebago County Board
	Resolution Awarding JDC Parking Lot Replacement Using CIP 2021 Funds
	Resolution Awarding Energy Wheels Replacement with ARP Funds
	Resolution Awarding Multi-Year Agreement for Permitting And CodeEnforcement Software To Brightly Software, Inc.
	Ordinance Amending Section 2-49 (Duties of The County Board Chairman) of The Winnebago County Code of Ordinances 
	Discuss Public Safety Building - Family Court Center - ARP Phase 2 Project



